2001

# KUTV, INC., a Nevada corporation v. Motor Sales, INC., a Utah corporation, dba Federal Mobile Homes : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action brought by the Plaintiff contending that the Defendant ordered television advertising and to recover the reasonable value of the advertising services. The services were alleged to have been rendered between September 1973 and February 1974. The Defendant contends the advertising was not authorized and further that the Plaintiff paid to an agent of the Defendant a secret commission and that any resulting agreement made by the agent and the Plaintiff as a result of the fraud and collusion was void.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Trial Court ruled that the agents of the Defendant

had apparent authority to contract for the advertising services of the Plaintiff and awarded a judgment against the Defendant in the sum of \$11,180.00 together with costs of court and interest.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The Defendant-Appellant, Motor Sales, Inc., seeks a reversal of the judgment of the Trial Court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Defendant, a Richfield Company, commenced doing business in the Salt Lake County area approximately May 1, 1973. Dewey Sargent was the General Manager of the Defendant Company. The Defendant company placed in charge of the Salt Lake Office an agent by the name of Harold J. Bowen who had an assistant by the name of Jim Martin. Both agents sold house trailers on a "commission only" compensation basis (R143 L30). Harold J. Bowen had no authorization to make purchases or incur any expense over the sum of \$250.00 (R144). During the month of May 1973, Harold J. Bowen made a contact with an agent of KUTV. An advertising proposal was presented to the Defendant and the advertising contract was authorized by Dewey Sargent of Motor Sales, Inc. The advertising account was paid through the month of August 1973.

Harold J. Bowen, without authorization, contracted with the Plaintiff for additional advertising services and without the knowledge of the Defendant or its general manager or any of its officers, Harold J. Bowen was given an expense paid

trip for two to Mazatlan, Mexico (R121). Thereafter, Harold J. Bowen executed an additional contract which would have given him a five day, four night "Fun in the Sun" vacation trip for four in San Juan, Puerto Rico (R121). The contract committed Motor Sales, Inc. to an advertising budget in the amount of \$7,000.00 for a period of time from December 1, 1973 thru February 28, 1974. The contract was not discovered by any of the principals of Motor Sales, Inc. until the month of February, 1974 when a copy was mistakenly mailed to the Motor Sales, Inc. Richfield Office (R149 L20). The secretary of KUTV who had mistakenly mailed the contract immediately called the Richfield Office of the Defendant and requested that the contract be returned immediately since she was apprehensive that she would lose her job unless it came back to her. Because of the inadvertency, the Defendant received notice that there was a conclusive and secret contract between the agent of the Defendant which gave the agent a secret benefit to induce the Defendant to spend large amounts for advertising with the Plaintiff company. A copy of the "KUTV San Juan Holiday" contract is attached as appendix i and the previous contract was identified as in substantially the same form and under which Bowen was given the trip to Mazatlan, Mexico (R128).

The principals of Motor Sales, Inc. were not made aware of the collusive contracts herein mentioned (R168-169)

and Harold J. Bowen, the beneficiary under the contracts, stated that the benefits from the contract were to inure to him personally although he regarded it somewhat unusual since he "never won a trip for spending money" before (R170 L11). However, he regarded the contract for his personal benefit (R170 L18; R171 L6).

## A R G U M E N T

### POINT I

A PRINCIPAL IS NOT BOUND BY CONTRACTS MADE BY HIS AGENTS, EVEN THOUGH WITHIN THE SCOPE OF AUTHORITY, WHERE THE AGENT HAS AN INDIVIDUAL INTEREST AND ACCEPTS A SECRET COMMISSION TO ENTER INTO THE CONTRACT.

There is no dispute in the evidence that the KUTV Account Executive, R. K. Cardwell, contacted Harold J. Bowen and secured advertising for the month of September, October, November and December of 1973. The advertising was induced by a KUTV Mazatlan, Mexico Holiday Contract in which Harold J. Bowen, agent for Motor Sales, Inc. secured an expense paid trip to Mazatlan, Mexico. Further there is no dispute in the evidence that Harold J. Bowen also executed a contract in which he committed \$7,000.00 in advertising in order to secure a "Fun in the Sun" Holiday in San Juan, Puerto Rico. The Mazatlan, Mexico Holiday Contract was in all respects similar to the San Juan Holiday Contract introduced into evidence as Exhibit "7" and attached for reference as appendix i. The principals of Motor Sales,

Inc. were never aware of either contract at the time of their execution. It was only through an error made in the mailing office of KUTV that the "San Juan Holiday" contract came to light (R149). Although R. K. Cardwell was aware the billings for advertising went to Richfield either directly or indirectly, he at no time advised any of the principals of the company of either advertising contract (R129-130). Each contract offered a reward to an agent who would induce Motor Sales, Inc. to spend substantial sums of money.

Public policy has long denied the validity of contracts entered into where an agent has been influenced in his contact by a secret commission or gratuity. The Utah Legislature has made such conduct a criminal offense.

Included in the Utah Criminal Code under "Fraud" is Section 76-6-508, U.C.A. 1953, which reads as follows:

76-6-508 BRIBERY OF OR RECEIVING BRIBE BY PERSON  
IN BUSINESS OF SELECTION, APPRAISAL OR CRITISIM  
OF GOODS OR SERVICES:

(1) A person is guilty of a class B misdemeanor when, without the consent of the employer or principal, contrary to the interests of the employer or principal:

(a) He confers, offers, or agrees to confer upon the employee, agent, or fiduciary of an employer or principal any benefit with the purpose of influencing the conduct of the employee, agent, or fiduciary in relating to his employer's or principal's affairs.

The legislature seeks to correct a situation where a gratuity or commission is given directly to an agent to influence his judgment in entering into contracts which are binding upon his principal. In the event such conduct were permitted, the agent's judgment is at best suspect since one of his motives is to obtain a personal benefit for himself. Under such circumstances the principal is not liable on contracts made by his agents as a result of collusion with the third party, although otherwise the agent may have acted within the scope of his authority. The payment or agreement to pay a secret commission, bribe or gratuity to the agent by the third party as an inducement to enter into the contractual relations on behalf of the principal is such collusion as to entitle the principal to avoid the contract, although the principal may have received some benefit.<sup>1</sup>

This matter was carefully considered by the New York Supreme Court in the case of *Sirkin vs. Fourteenth Street Store*, 108 New York Supplement 830. An action was brought against the Fourteenth Street Store to recover \$1555.81, being the purchase price of certain hosiery and wrappers sold and delivered by the Plaintiff to the Defendant. The Defendant was a corporation conducting a department store in the City

---

<sup>1</sup>3CJS Section 421 Agency, Page 276

of New York and the Plaintiff was a manufacturer of or a dealer of goods. The defense to the purchase contract was that the Plaintiff for the purpose of inducing the purchase of goods by the Defendant purchasing agent, agreed to pay a sum equivalent to 5% of the purchase price of the goods ordered. The Lower Court entered a decision favoring the Plaintiff because the goods had been delivered and holding that it would be inequitable for the Defendant to retain the goods and also to decline to pay for them.

In reversing the decision of the Lower Court, the Supreme Court of New York cited New York Penal Code which made it a misdemeanor to "corrupt influencing of agents, employees or servants by the giving of any gift or gratuity whatsoever."

The court then held a contract made in violation of a criminal statute, although not expressly prohibited or declared to be void, is prohibited, void and unenforceable whether executory or executed. The Court held:

"It is manifest that the legislature in enacting this criminal statute intended to emphasize and extend the public policy of common law, which rendered such contacts by agents for their own benefit void. It being the providence of the legislature to declare the public policy of the state, it is the duty of the court to be guided thereby in administering the law. Nothing could be more corrupting, nor have a greater tendency to lead to disloyalty and dishonesty on the part of servants, agents and employees, and

to betray the confidence of the the trust reposed in them, than these practices which the legislature has endeavored to stamp out; and I think nothing will be more effective in stopping the growth and spread of this corrupting and now a criminal custom than a decision that the courts will refuse their aid to a guilty vendor or vendee, or to anyone who has obtained a contract by secretly bribing the servant, agent, or employee of another to purchase or sell property or to place the contract with him . . . public policy requires that an agent, servant or employee shall perform the duties of his employment involving discretion and trust, with a single purpose of serving his master or employer, for the salary or compensation which he has agreed to pay, has the right to expect honest, faithful, loyal services rendered with a sole regard to his interest. The tenancy of this practice (permitting individual gratuities or commissions) is to make the servant disloyal and to have his action not only influenced, but controlled, by his personal interests, rather than by duties of his employment . . . the vise lies in making the agreement without the knowledge of the master."

The same question was also considered in *Standard Lumber Company vs. Butler Ice Company* by the Circuit Court of Appeals of the United States for the Western District of Pennsylvania, 146 *Federal Reporter* 360. In that matter, the Plaintiff, Standard Lumber Company, brought an action against the Defendant, Butler Ice Company for material and labor in a certain construction contract for the erection of an ice plant. The president of the Defendant company was paid \$2,000.00 to influence the Defendant

company in entering into the contract. The Court refused judgment to Plaintiff holding the contract was not only immoral, but it was illegal and criminal and therefore void. No court would be justified in enforcing the whole or any part of said contract.

The United States Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit considered a similar question in the case of *American Ship Building Company vs. Commonwealth SS Company*, 215 Federal Reporter 296. The American Ship Building Company constructed and delivered a ship to Commonwealth SS Company for the price of \$385,000.00. It was agreed that the Plaintiff would pay a commission of \$15,000.00 to agents of the Defendant, which commission was not disclosed to the Defendant officers. The court authorized rescission by the buyer because of the fraud and then considered certain equitable matters since the ship had been used for a period of over six years.

Under statutes such as the one adopted by the Legislature of the State of Utah making the payment of a secret commission or bonus to an agent a crime, it has been generally held that resulting public policy would forbid an action for the price of goods sold and delivered or for work, labor and materials furnished.<sup>2</sup>

---

<sup>2</sup>3CJS Section 421 Agency, Page 276

This court has consistently declared contracts unenforceable where the legislature has enacted a statute to protect the public.<sup>3</sup>

C O N C L U S I O N

Defendant's agents Bowen and Martin were granted a trip to Mazatlan, Mexico in October of 1973 for inducing advertising purchases by the Defendant from the Plaintiff and thereafter entered into a contract to induce the Defendant to spend an additional \$7,000.00 in committed advertising funds (R128). The bribe or gratuity was never disclosed to the Defendant or any of its principal operating officers. Under this circumstance, the Utah Statutes and public policy will not permit an action for the price of the advertising service extended by the Plaintiff in such a manner as to seriously influence or undermine their loyalty to a principal. We submit the contract for the advertising services is void and the judgment of the Lower Court should be reversed since it authorizes payment for services rendered under such circumstances.

Respectfully submitted,

TEX R. OLSEN  
Olsen and Chamberlain  
76 South Main  
Richfield, Utah 84701

*Attorneys for Defendant-Appellant*


---

<sup>3</sup>*Olsen vs. Reese* 200 P2d 733; 114 Utah 411  
*Eklund vs. Elwell* 211 P2d 849; 116 Utah 521  
*Lyman vs. Taylor* 384 P2d 401; 14 U2d 362