2000

# KUTV Inc., A Nevada corporation v. Motor Sales, Inc., a Utah corporation, dba Federal Mobile Homes : Brief of Respondent KUTV, Inc.

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action brought by the Plaintiff to recover the reasonable value of television advertising ordered by and furnished to the Defendant.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Trial Court found that Mr. Bowen and Mr. Martin were agents of the Defendant and that Defendant held them out as having authority to contract for advertising. The Court further held that the Defendant's course of conduct with regard to its agents justified the reliance of the Plaintiff in contracting with the agents and in furnishing advertising services to the

Defendant based on the agents acts and representations. Plaintiff was awarded a judgment against the Defendant in the amount of \$11,180.00 for services rendered through December 31, 1973, plus costs and interest. The Court found that plaintiff was not entitled to recover for advertising services for January and February, 1974, in the amount of \$2,123.20.

#### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The Plaintiff-Respondent, KUTV, inc., seeks an affirmance of the judgment rendered by the Trial Court.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Defendant, Motor Sales, Inc. dba Federal Mobile Homes, a Richfield, Utah Company was doing business in Salt Lake County, during 1973 and 1974. Harold Bowen was manager of the Salt Lake City lot (R.143). Mr. Bowen contacted Richard Cardwell of KUTV, the Plaintiff company, to secure television advertising for Motor Sales, Inc., dba Federal Mobile Homes. Bowen placed the advertising with Plaintiff commencing in May of 1973 (R.108).

Advertising industry custom is for salesmen to take orders from agents or employees of the client and not to contact company presidents for authorization (R.116,133). The advertising through August, 1973, was paid for by check signed by Dewey Sargent, general manager of the Defendant Company (R.124). During June, July and August 1973, Mr. Bowen ordered on behalf of the Defendant, over \$5,000 of advertising. This advertising was

accepted and paid for by the Defendant (R.121). Mr. Bowen continued to order advertising for the Defendant in September, 1973 and thereafter (R.118). There was no indication from anyone prior to this lawsuit that the advertising after August, 1973, was not authorized by the Defendant Company (R.92,94,95,120). All advertising placed by Plaintiff was authorized by either Dewey Sargent, Harold Bowen or Jim Martin (R.120,146).

Prior to running any of the ads, the Plaintiff company sent a notice to Defendant in Richfield, Utah, that they had ordered advertising and telling them the dates on which it would run (R.82). The principals of the Defendant Company in Richfield, Utah had advance notice of all advertising furnished by Plaintiff but did not instruct Plaintiff not to run it (R.92,94,95,120). As late as February, 1975, Plaintiff was assured by Defendant's Richfield office that the advertising would be paid for, that the checks were on Mr. Sargent's desk, but because he was going through a divorce he hadn't signed the checks (R.92,92).

The Plaintiff Company had a program whereby large volume advertisers who purchased a certain amount of advertising would receive an expense paid trip. Bowen signed a commitment on behalf of the Defendant Company to purchase \$2600.00 of advertising from June through August of 1973 (R.120,121). The Defendant Company received trips for two to Mazatlan, Mexico, since the Defendant spent \$5,000 in advertising during that period (R.121).

Bowen later signed another commitment for the Defendant Company to purchase \$7,000 of advertising from December, 1973, through February, 1974, (R.121). For the second commitment the Defendant Company would receive a trip for four to San Juan, Puerto Rico, (R.120). No trips on the second commitment were given the Defendant Company because of their failure to pay their account (R.86,135).

While the agent of the Defendant signed the commitments for the Defendant, the trips were to go to whomever the Defendant Company decided should go (R.130,131). The plaintiff's sales manager had the understanding that Mr. Sargent was going to take the trip (R.122). Bowen told Sargent of the trip (R.153,170). Mr. Sargent stated that he didn't want a trip as he had won ten trips (R.153). Bowen testified that Sargent could have taken the trip if Sargent chose to do so (R.171).

## A R G U M E N T

### POINT I

THERE WAS NO SECRET COMMISSION OFFERED TO ANY AGENT OF THE DEFENDANT-APPELLANT AND THE PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT DEALT FAIRLY, OPENLY AND IN GOOD FAITH WITH THE DEFENDANT-APPELLANT, THEREFORE, DEFENDANT-APPELLANT IS OBLIGATED TO PAY FOR THE SERVICES RECEIVED FROM PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT.

It is an accepted rule of law that a principal will be liable to third persons for acts committed by the agent in his behalf in the course and within the actual or apparent scope of his authority. 3 CJS Section 390, Agency, page 276; B & R Supply Company v. Bringhurst, 28 Utah 2d 442, 503 P 2d 1216

(1972); Naujoks v. Suhrmann, 9 Utah 2d 84, 337 P. 2d 967 (1959).

The facts of the instant case dictate that the above stated rule of law should be applied here. Harold Bowen, manager of Defendant's Salt Lake City operation (R.143), contacted Richard Cardwell of KUTV, the Plaintiff company, for the purpose of securing television advertising for the Defendant (R.107) and did purchase advertising (R.108). It is advertising industry practice or custom for salesmen to take orders from agents or employees of the client and not to contact company principals for authorization of the orders (R.116,133). The advertising ordered by Bowen or his successor, Jim Martin (R.120) from May 1973 through August, 1973, amounting to over \$5,000 (R.152) was paid for by check signed by Dewey Sargent, general manager of the Defendant Company and another individual (R.124). Bowen and Martin continued to order advertising after August 1973, but it was not paid for (R.86) even though as late as February, 1975, Defendant's Richfield office assured Plaintiff that it would be paid for (R.91,92).

The Defendant does not challenge the Trial Court's decision that the purchases of advertising through December, 1974 were incurred by duly authorized agents of the Defendant, upon whom the Plaintiff was entitled to rely, but contends only that it should not be bound by the contracts because the agents had an individual interest and accepted a secret commission to enter into the contracts. (Appellants' Brief p.4).

The Plaintiff acted fairly, openly and in good faith in its dealings with Defendant and did nothing illegal nor against public



policy. There is no dispute that the services ordered by Defendant were furnished and were satisfactory. Notice was given to Defendant at it's main office in Richfield prior to the running of each ad telling them how and when it would run (R.82). Mr. Sargent testified that he was aware that they were receiving television advertising after August, 1973 (R.151). It was not until February, 1974, that Plaintiff received a letter from Defendant stating they would only pay bills purchased by purchase order (R.93,106). Thus, while the Defendant knew it was receiving advertising after August, 1973, no attempt was made to cancel the advertising for five or six months.

Plaintiff had a sales program in which any client who bought certain amounts of advertising would receive free holiday trips. Mr. Bowen signed an agreement on behalf of the Defendant Company to the effect that if the company purchased \$2,600 worth of advertising from June through August of 1973, the Defendant Company would receive two trips to Mazatlan, Mexico (R.120,121). The Defendant purchased and paid for over \$5,000 of advertising through August, 1973 (R.152) and Mr. Sargent personally authorized payment for the advertising (R.124). As a result of that advertising the Defendant Company received trips for two to Mazatlan, Mexico. Bowen told Mr. Sargent he had the trip coming (R.153,170). The Plaintiff's sales manager didn't offer the trip to Bowen but to the Company and understood that Sargent would take the trip (R.122). Mr. Sargent stated he did not want the trip because he had won ten

trips of his own (R.153). Bowen testified that Sargent could have taken the trip had he chosen to do so (R.171). Bowen later signed another agreement under which the Defendant Company would get a trip for four, to Puerto Rico if it purchased \$7,000 of advertising (R.121). When asked about the signing of the free trip agreements Bowen testified to the effect that the Company had nothing to lose by his signing. If it turned out that the Company bought enough advertising the Company would get the trips. If the Company did not, they would not receive the trips but would still receive the advertising purchased (R.169). Indeed, under the first agreements, Mr. Sargent spent over twice as much on advertising as was required to receive the trip (R.152) and was able to qualify his company for the trips.

Defendant argues that the offer of the trips was a secret bribe offered by Plaintiff to Bowen to induce him to act against his company's best interests. The argument is fallacious. There is no evidence that there was any secret agreement between the Plaintiff and Defendant's agents. Mr. Cardwell, the Plaintiff's sales manager was told that Mr. Sargent, the general manager of the Defendant, would take the trip if the advertising was sufficient (R.122). Defendant's interests were not adversely affected in any way. Defendant received the advertising ordered. Defendant was not induced to purchase more advertising than desired. In fact, during the months of June, July and August, 1973, the Defendant voluntarily spent twice as much on advertising as was required to receive the trip.

The trips were not offered to Defendant's agents individually but were offered to the company (R.130,131). Mr. Sargent was informed of the trip and declined to go (R.153). The commitment signed by Bowen indicates that Bowen signed for the Defendant and the agreement lists Defendant's Richfield address. Thus the offer of the trips were not secret, were not made to the agents individually, were not made to induce the agents to violate their fiduciary duty to their principal and did not adversely affect their principals interests.

Defendant also argues that Plaintiff's actions violated state law (Appellants Brief p.5). Utah does have a bribery statute which reads in pertinent part:

76-6-508. Bribery of or receiving bribe by person in the business of selection, appraisal, or criticism of goods or services. - (1) A person is guilty of a class B misdemeanor when, without the consent of the employer or principal, contrary to the interests of the employer or principal:

(a) He confers, offers, or agrees to confer upon the employee, agent or fiduciary of an employer or principal any benefit with the purpose of influencing the conduct of the employee, agent, or fiduciary in realting to his employer's or principal's affairs; or

(b) He, as an employee, agent, or fiduciary of an employer or principal, solicits, accepts, or agrees to accept any benefit from another upon an agreement or understanding that such benefit will influence his conduct in relation to his employer's or principals affairs; provided that this section does not apply to inducements made or accepted solely for the purpose of causing a change in employment by an employee, agent, or fiduciary.

There are several elements to this offense. A benefit must be offered to an agent. The purpose of the offer must be to influence

the agents conduct relating to his principal's affairs. The offer must be both without the principals' consent and contrary to the principals interests.

The statute does not proscribe the Plaintiff's actions nor was it intended to cover this fact situation. Plaintiff's offer to provide trips was not made to Bowen, the agent, individually; it was made to the Defendant Company. The agreement itself states that Bowen was signing on behalf of Federal Mobile Homes and lists Defendant's Richfield address. The offer was not without Defendant's consent because its General Manager knew of the trip and did not complain (R.153,170). It was understood by the Plaintiff that the General Manager and not the agent would take the trip (R.122). The Plaintiff did not give any secret incentives to Mr. Bowen (R. 109).

The contract was not contrary to Defendant's business interests and the Defendant did receive the benefits of the advertising. Originally, Mr. Bowen contacted the Plaintiff seeking advertising. Plaintiff did not even make the original contact (R.107,108).

It might be argued that Plaintiff acted unwisely in dealing with the Defendant Company through Bowen and Martin. However, it is industry custom to deal with agents and rely upon their authority for advertising contracts both as to volume of advertising and content of advertising (R.116,133). When dealing with a corporation, one must of necessity deal with employees of the corporation and when dealing with an agent one may presume that information given to the agent

will be communicated to the principal. 3 CJS, Agency, Section 432-433. By analogy, payments to an agent may be presumed to be properly applied to the principal. Utah Code Annotated Section 22-1-2 (1953) reads:

Payments made to fiduciaries - A person who in good faith pays or transfers to a fiduciary any money or other property which the fiduciary as such is authorized to receive, is not responsible for the proper application thereof by the fiduciary; and no right or title acquired from the fiduciary in consideration of such payment or transfer is invalid in consequence of a misapplication by the fiduciary.

Plaintiff justifiably presumed that Bowen would communicate the offer of the trips to his principals, particularly where prior purchases by Bowen had been paid for by the Defendant and where Plaintiff was informed that General Manager, Sargent, was going on one of the trips (R.122) and where the offer was communicated to his principals (R.153,170).

As stated, Plaintiff did not violate the Utah bribery statute. There is no public policy reason Plaintiff should be denied recovery in this case. The Defendant has not been injured in any way. The services ordered were furnished. Only Plaintiff has been injured to the extent that it has not been paid for services rendered in good faith.

The cases cited by Defendant to bolster its position in this matter are inapplicable. The Three Utah cases cited involve people engaging in the building contracting business without the proper license. The public must be protected from unscrupulous and unqualified builders when making such a substantial expenditure as buying a

home. But, there is no allegation in the present case that the Plaintiff has violated any licensing laws.

Similarly, the cases cited by Defendant for the proposition that it is against public policy and the law to corruptly influence agents by offering secret bribes, commissions and gratuities involved actions very different from those of the Plaintiff and do not apply. In Standard Lumber v. Butler Ice Co., 146 Federal Reporter 359 (1906) the principal of one company entered into a corrupt agreement with the president of another company to increase the bid for constructing a building by 50 percent with the understanding that the amount of the increase would be divided among the conspirators. In the present case there were no such dealings. The Defendant was not induced to pay more for services than the services were worth and there was no agreement between any of the parties involved to divide any increases in costs among themselves at Defendant's expense. There is absolutely no evidence of any conspiracy to defraud the Defendant.

American Shipbuilding Co., v. Commonwealth S.S. Co., 215 Federal Reporter 296 (1914), involved a situation similar to that in Standard Lumber, (Supra.). In that case, certain parties agreed with a shipbuilding company that they would organize a corporation which would purchase a ship from the shipbuilding company at an inflated price in exchange for a secret commission in the amount by which the ship price was inflated. The fact of the secret commission was not communicated to the stockholders of the newly organized corporation.

But, again there is no such kind of conspiracy to profit at the expense of some uninformed principal in the present case.

Finally the case of Sirkin vs. Fourteenth Street Store, 108 New York Supplement 830 (1908) involved a secret agreement between a seller and a purchasing agent, where, in exchange for an order to purchase, the purchasing agent would receive 5% of the purchase price of the goods ordered. The agreement was secret, the secret bribe was given to the purchasing agent for his own use and the 5% payment came out of the price paid by the Defendant Company. Moreover, the agreement was in violation of state law. None of these characteristics exists in the present case. The offer of the trip was not secret, was not given to the agent for his own use, was not paid for out of an increased price passed on to the Defendant and was not in violation of state law.

There is no evidence of fraud, conspiracy or collusion between Plaintiff and Defendant's agents to profit at Defendant's expense. But assuming for argument, that there were, Plaintiff, nonetheless, under more recent cases would be entitled to recover the reasonable value of the services furnished to and enjoyed by the Defendant. In the United States Supreme Court case of Crocker vs. United States, 240, U.S., 74, 36 S.Ct. 245, 60 L.Ed. 533 (1915), a postal employee was offered a share in excess profits by a supplier if he could induce the government to purchase satchels. The supplier was denied recovery upon the contract for the satchels supplied because of the fraud but the Court held that this was not an obstacle to a recovery upon a quantum valebut.

### C O N C L U S I O N

The Plaintiff dealt fairly and openly with the Defendant. All services ordered were supplied. There is no dispute as to the quality or the price of the services rendered by Plaintiff. Defendant was aware that the advertising was ordered and was being supplied and that free trips were offered by the Plaintiff. Defendant's interests were not adversely affected by the Plaintiff. There was no collusion or conspiracy to defraud the Defendant. While there is some dispute in the testimony of the witnesses, the Trial Court, having heard the testimony and having observed the demeanor and comportment of the witnesses, held that the Plaintiff should recover for the services rendered. It is respectfully submitted that the judgment of the Trial Court should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,



E. NORDELL WEEKS  
McMILLAN & BROWNING  
1020 Kearns Building  
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101

Attorneys for Plaintiff-Respondent